ROBERT A. WATSON National Commander

(Founded in 1865) WILLIAM BOOTH, FOUNDER

NATIONAL HEADQUARTERS 615 Slaters Lane Alexandria, VA 22313 Telephone: (703) 684-5500 Fax: (703) 684-3478

Mailing Address P.O. Box 269 Alexandria, VA 22313

February 14, 1996

Danny Ma

Dear Mr. M

:

RE: Cleveland Harbor Light Center/Major Edward Dimond

Enclosed are copies of information concerning the Harbor Light Center in Cleveland, Ohio (formerly the Red Shield Center) and Edward Dimond.

The only "Drum Beat" newsletters we have are from the late 1970's and early 1980's.

Please let me know if I may help you with any future questions.

Sincerely,

Connie Hagood

Archivist

Archives and Research Center

Comice Hogood

" Harbor Light

HARBOR LIGHT COMPLEX

1889 - Opened 1885 February 1889 Cd. Brandt (W) Captain Wimer - Cd. Thorn - Cd. Radcliffe (W) Captain Wimer - Cd. Williams - Cd Tanuer (W) Captain Wimer - Captain Walker & Cadets Corrner Hill & Commercial Streets Women's Training Garrison

- 1890 Captain Wimer Lt. Gugger (W) Captain Kemp (M) Captain Shadduck - Lt. Vint - Lt. Webb (M) Captain & Mrs. Hayes Address - Hill Street
- 1891 Captain & Mrs. Willis Cd. Morgan Lt. Kean - Cd. Walker Captain & Mrs Hayes Address - Hill Street
- 1892 Captain & Mrs. Sampson Cd. Loing Cap tain Iruen - Lt. Sheldon (W) Captain Brooks - Lt. Bastard (M) Address - Hill Street
- 1893 Captain A. Pierce Cd. Fox (M) Captain Christie - Lt. Hill (W) Captain Christie - Lt. Hill (W) Captain Christie - Lt. Zedan Captain & Mr . Galley Address - Hill Street
- 1894 Captain & Mrs. Duffey Captain & Mrs. De Garis Address - Hill Street
- 1895 Captain & Mrs. De Garis Captain & Mrs. Roe Address - Hill Street
- 1896 Captain & Mrs. Lockyer Captain Moore - Lt. Emig (W) Captain Parker (W) Address - 50% Sumner Street
- 1897 Ensign Tanner (W) Ensign Virgin - Captain Riggs (W) Captain Stephenson - Lt. Hayter (W) Address - 220 Central Avenue
- 1898 Adjutant & Mrs. Walker Captain Klutts Ensign & Mrs. Lewis Address - 220 Central Avenue
- 1899 Ensign & Mrs. Lewis Address - 1312 Central Avenue
- 1900 Staff-Captain & Mrs. Hunter Supply Ensign & Mrs. Storey - Captain McCoy

- 1901 Ensign & Mrs. Storey
 Address 1312 Central Avenue
- 1902 Ensign & Mrs. Storey
 Adjutant & Mrs. Heift Lt. Loving
 Adjutant & Mrs. Heift Captain Hinkle
 Address 107 stoneman Street
- 1903 Adjutant & Mrs. Heift Captain Hinkle Adjutant & Mrs. Heift - Ensign Harrington Address - Erie & Eagle Street
- 1904 Adjutant & Mrs. Heift Captain Harrington Adjutant & Mrs. Heift - Captain Fred Ensign & Mrs. Grimshaw - Lt. Trew - Lt. Cooke Address - Erie & Eagle Streets
- 1905 Adjutant & Mrs. F. Bartlett Lt. Cooke Address - Erie & Eagle Streets
- 1906 Adjutant & Mrs. F. Bartlett Lt. G. Cooke
 Adjutant & Mrs. F. Bartlett Captain G. Cooke
 Adjutant & Mrs. F. Bartlett Captain A. Craytor
 Address Erie & Eagle Streets
- 1907 Adjutant & Mrs. F. Bartlett Captain A. Craytor
 Adjutant & Mrs. P. M. Lindstrom Captain W. A. Bassett
 Adjutant & Mrs. P. M. Lindstrom Captain S. Bowie
 Address Eagle & Erie Streets
- 1968 Adjutant & Mrs. P. M. Linestrom Captain S. Bowie Ensign & Mrs. R. Marshall - Captain H. Mackness Address - Erie & Eagle Streets
- 1909 Ensign & Mrs. R. Marshall- Captain W. Fordyce Address - Erie & Eagle Streets
- 1910 Ensign & Mrs. R. Marshall Captain W. Fordyce Captain & Mrs. W. Wilkins - Captain T. McMahon Address - Erie & Eagle Streets
- 1911 Captain & Mrs. Wilkins Captain T. McMahon Adjutant & Mrs. M. Calhoun Captain L. Van der Schouw (W) Address - Erie & Eagle Streets
- 1912 Captain L. Van der Schouw (W)
 Adjutant & Mrs. E. Hariss Lt. M. Johnson
 Address Erie & Eagle Streets
- 1913 Captain G. Purdum Captain W. Spatig (M)
 Captain G. Purdum Lt. E. Kunz
 Ensign & Mrs. A. Smith
 Address 2356 E. 100th street

CLEVELAND, OHIO (CITADEL)

- 1914 Ensign & Mrs. M. Van Sweden Ensign & Mrs. F. Crowell Address - 2356 E. 100th Street
- 1915 Ensign & Mrs. F. Crowell Captain & Mrs. A. Wainwright Address - 830 Eagle Street
- 1916 Captain & Mrs. A. Wainwright
 Captain J. Linden Captain E. Kunz (M)
 Ensign & Mrs. A. Figgins
 Address 2304 E. Ninth Street
- 1917 Adjutant & Mrs. A. Figgins
 Captain & Mrs. H. Purdum Lt. J. A. Burt
 Address 2304 E. Ninth Street
- 1915 Captain & Mrs. H. Purdum Lt. J. A. Burt Captain & Mrs. R. Ives - Lt. A. Brooks Address - 2304 E. Ninth Street
- 1919 Adjutant W. Scott Captain & Mrs. H. Geaner Address - 2304 E. Ninth Street
- 1920 Ensign I. Barnes Ensign M. Bishof Captain & Mrs. R. Ives Ensign I. Barnes - Captain J. Miller (W) Address - 2304 E. Ninth Street
- 1921 Ensign I. Barnes Captain J. Miller Captain B. Lambert Mrs. Staff-Captain C. Dinwoodie
 Address 2304 E. Ninth Street
- 1922 Mrs. Staff-Captain C. Dinwoodie Lt. V. Dinwoodie Address 2304 E. Ninth Street
- 1923 Mrs. Staff-Captain C. Dinwoodie Lt. V. Dinwoodie Comdt. & Mrs. J. Abrams
 Address 2304 E. Ninth Street
- 1924 Comdt. & Mrs. J. Abrams Lt. L. Shafer Lt. D. Winkler Address - 2304 E. Ninth Street
- 1925 Comdt. & Mrs. J. Abrams
 Adjutant & Mrs. J. Dean Lt. H. House
 Address 2304 E. Ninth Street
- 1926 Adjutant & Mrs. J. Dean Lt. H. House Adjutant & Mrs. G. Laws Address - 2304 E. Ninth Street
- 1927 Comdt. & Mrs. G.Laws Address - 2304 E. Ninth Street
- 1928 Comdt. A. Hargate Lt. N. Shingler Lt. N. Drury (W)
 Comdt. A. Hargate Lt. E. Smith (W)
 Address 2304 E. Ninth Street

CLEVELAND, OHIO (CITADEL)

- 1929 Fd.-Major & Mrs. C. Wiseman Lt. M. Hunnewell Fd.-Major & Mrs. C. Wiseman - Lt. L. Mays Address - 2304 E. Ninth Street
- 1930 Field-Major & Mrs. C. Wiseman Lt. L. Mays Address - 2304 E. Ninth Street
- 1931 Fd-Major & Mrs. E. Mott Address - 2304 E. Ninth Street
- 1932 Major & Mrs. E. Mott Captain & Mrs. J. Mac Murdo Address - 2304 E. Ninth Street
- 1933 Captain & Mrs. MacMurdo Address - 2304 E. Ninth Street
- 1934 Captain & Mrs. J. MacMurdo Address - 2304 E. Ninth Street
- 1935 Captain & Mrs. J. MacMurdo Address - 2304 E. Ninth Street
- 1936 Captain E. Kiger Captain B. Yancey (W)
 Captain E. Brooks Lt. E. McClements
 Address 2304 E. Ninth Street
- 1937 Gaptain E. Brooks Lt. F. Garman Address - 2304 E. Ninth Street
- 1938 Captain E. Brooks Lt. F. Garman Captain E. Brooks - Lt. N. Taylor Address - 2304 E. Ninth Street
- 1939 Captain Elizabeth Brooks
 Captain Elizabeth Brooks and Lieut. Faith Malpass

Address: 2304 E. Ninth Street Res. 4112 Woburn Avenue

1940 Captain Elizabeth Brooks and Lieut. Irene Graham Adjutant Elizabeth Brooks and Lieut. Irene Graham

Address: 2304 E. Ninth Street Res. 4112 Woburn Avenue

1941 Adjutant Elizabeth Brooks and Lieut. Gertrude McKim Captain and Mrs. Everett Henry

Address: 2304 E. Ninth Street Res. 4114 Woburn Avenue

1942 Captain and Mrs. Everett Henry
Captain Lucy Ball and Lieut. Grace Shackelford

Address: 2304 E. Ninth Street Res. 4114 Woburn Avenue

1943 Lieutenant Robert Langford Captain and Mrs. Robert Langford

Address: 2304 E. Ninth Street

Res. 4114 Woburn Avenue

CLEVELAND (CITADEL), OHIO

-5-

1944	Captain Roderick Knaggs Captain Dolores Clifford and Lieut. Lillian Southwood
	Address: 2304 E. Ninth Street Res. 4114 Woburn Avenue
1945	Supply
1946	Captain Dolores Clifford and Lieutenant Joan Hackworth
1947	Captain Miriam Vahey, Captain Lillian Southwood
1948	Captain and Mrs. Arthur Marshall
1949	2nd. Lieutenant William Boone and Lieutenant Edward Dimond
1950	2nd. Lieutenant Edward Dimond and Lieutenant Edward Holmberg
1951	2nd Lieut. Edward Dimond, 2nd Lieut. Victor Doughty and P/Lieut. Ralph Leidy
1952	Name changed to Cleveland (Bowery)
1952	2nd Lieut. Edward Dimond, 2nd Lieut. Victor Doughty and Lieut. Ralph Leidy 2nd Lieut. Edward Dimond and 2nd Lieut. Ralph Leidy 2nd Lieut. and Mrs. Edward Dimond and P/Lieut. Harold Wagner
1953	1st Lieut. and Mrs. Edward Dimond and P/Lieut. Harold Wagner 1st Lieut. and Mrs. Edward Dimond
1954	Name change to Cleveland (Harbor Light)
1954	Captain and Mrs. Eduard Dimond Red Shield Lodge 820 Eagle Ave.,
1955	Captain and Mrs. Edward Dimond
1956	Captain and Mrs. Edward Dimond
	Addresses: 2504-E:-Minth-Street- 830 Eagle Avenue Lodge:820 Eagle Av e.
1957	Captain and Mrs. Edward Dimond
1958	Captain and Mrs. Edward Dimond
	Res.: 1345 West Blvd.
1959	Captain and Mrs. Edward Dimond
1960	Captain and Mrs. Edward Dimond Captain and Mrs. Edward Dimond and Lieut. Robert Baldwin Captain and Mrs. Edward Dimond

Formerly Citadel

Page 6

Formerly Bowery

Lodge: 2304 E. Ninth St.

- 1961 Captain and Mrs. Edward Dimond
- 1962 Captain and Mrs. Edward Dimond
 Red Shield Lodge name change Red Shield Hotel
- 1963 Captain and Mrs. Edward Dimond
- 1964 Captain and Mrs. Edward Dimond
- 1965 Captain and Mrs. Edward Dimond
 Captain and Mrs. Edward Dimond and Capt. Arthur W. Hill
 Major and Mrs. Edward Dimond
- Major and M rs. Edward Dimond
 Res. Address:15415 Greenway Road
- 1967 Major and Mrs. Edward Dimond
- 1968 Major and Mrs. Edward Dimond
- Major and Mrs. Edward Dimond
 Major and Mrs. Edward Dimond and Lieut and Mrs. Lawrence Shaffe
- 1970 Major and Mrs. Edward Dimond and Lieut. and Mrs. Lawrence Shaff
 Address: 1620-1710 Prospect Ave
- Major and Mrs. Edward Dimond and Lieut. and Mrs. Lawrence Shaff Major and Mrs. Edward Dimond and LCapt.and Mrs. Lawrence Shaffe
- 1972 Major and Mrs. Edward Dimond and Capt.and Mrs.Lawrence Shaffer
- 1973 Name changed to Cleveland Harbor Light Complex
 - 6-73 Major Edward V. Dimond, Director 8-73 Captain Stanley Wells

Addresses: 1710 Prospect Avenue
Harbor House: 2144 East 18th Street
Community Center: 2114 East 18th Street
Rehab. Center: 1710 Prospect Avenue
Director's Residence: 15415 Greenway Road

Cleveland (Citadel) Corps - attached to Harbor Light Complex 6-73 Lieutenant William Brewer Address: 1620 Prospect Avenue

1974	6-73	Major and Mrs. Edward V. (Dorothy) Dimond, Director
		Addresses: Same as 1973
		Cleveland (Citadel) Corps - attached to Harbor Light Complex 6-73 Lieutenant and Mrs. William (Joan) Brewer Address: Same as 1973
1975	6-73	Major and Mrs. Edward V. (Dorothy) Dimond, Director
		Addresses: 1710 Prospect Avenue Harbor House: 2144 East 18th Street Community Center: 2114 East 18th Street Rehab. House: 1710 Prospect Avenue Director's Residence: 15415 Greenway Road Detox Center: 2138 East 18th Street Cleveland (Citadel) Corps - attached to Harbor Light Complex Address: Same as 1973 No officers listed
1976	6-73	Major and Mrs. Edward V. (Dorothy) Dimond, Director
		Addresses: Same as 1975
		Cleveland (Citadel) Corps - attached to Harbor Light Complex Address: Same as 1973 No officers listed
1977	6-73	Major and Mrs. Edward V. (Dorothy) Dimond, Director
		Addresses: Same as 1975
		Cleveland (Citadel) Corps - attached to Harbor Light Complex Address: Same as 1973 No officers listed
1978	6-73	Major and Mrs. Edward V. (Dorothy) Dimond, Director
		Addresses: Same as 1975
		Cleveland (Citadel) Corps - attached to Harbor Light Complex Address: Same as 1973 No officers listed
1979	6-73	Major and Mrs. Edward V. (Dorothy) Dimond, Director
		Addresses: Same as 1975
		Cleveland (Citadel) Corps - attached to Harbor Light Complex Address: Same as 1973 No officers listed

	1980	6-73	Major and Mrs. Edward V. (Dorothy) Dimond, Director
			Addresses: East 18th and Prospect Avenue Rehab. House: 1710 Prospect Avenue Harbor House: 2114 E. 18th Street Retirement Lodge: 2114 E. 18th Street Correctional Res: 2114 E. 18th Street Detox Center: 2138 E. 18th Street Director's Residence: 15415 Greenway Road
			Cleveland (Citadel) Corps - not listed in Dispo
	1981	6-73	Major and Mrs. Edward V. (Dorothy) Dimond, Director Addresses: Same as 1980
	1982	6-73	Major and Mrs. Edward V. (Dorothy) Dimond, Director Addresses: Same as 1980
	1984		Harbor House 1620 Prospect Emergency Services 2114 East 18th St. Podiatric Clinic [no address listed]
			All other information the same as 1982.
2200			
Nov	1985		same

EASTERN TERRITORY NORTHEASTERN OHIO DIVSION CLEVELAND (HARBOR LIGHT), OH.

1992	6/95 Ma	ajor & Mrs.	Charles	(Maria)	Williams
1994	same a	s above			

HARBOR LIGHT COMPLEX The Salvation Army Cleveland, Ohio 44115-2376

On January 16, 1949 the Cleveland Citadel Corps officially became a residential program for male alcoholics.

Year	Capacity	CHRONOLOGY OF GROWTH		Annual Bu	dget
1949	10 beds	E 9th building shared with DHQ and Citadel Hotel	S	11,000	*
1955	40 beds	Name changed to Bowery Corps	5	32,000	*
1956	50 beds	Name changed to Harbor Light Corps	s	62,900	
1960	80 beds	DHQ moved out, building shared with Citadel Hotel	s	65,080	
1969	150 beds	Citadel Hotel becomes part of Harbor Light Center	S	225,000	
1972	100 total	Relocated to 1710 Prospect (Old YWCA)	s	280,000	
1973	150 total	Reorganized into Harbor Light Complex	s	600,000	
1975	185 total	Added Detox Center and became Co Ed	S	740,000	
1976	200 total	Added Retirement & Correctional Houses	S	1,000,000	
1977	200 total	Accounting sent to the New York EDP Department	s	1,000,000	
1979	220 total	Added in-house PC computer for MIS reports	S	1,100,000	
1983	235 total	Added Family Shelter and Soup kitchen	5	1,700,000	
1984	235 total	Now using 3 PC computers in-house	S	2,000,000	
1989	235 total	Added NY computer terminal, 8 PC computers	\$	2,100,000	

The Salvation Army John E. (Jack) Siringer Family Shelter

The generosity of the Siringer family is making possible the expansion of the Family Shelter. With capacity for 10 families, each with their own multi-room unit with bath, the Harbor Light Complex is the only agency in the Greater Cleveland Area that keeps the family intact during their time of stress.

STRUCTURE OF THE HARBOR LIGHT COMPLEX by Major Edward Dimond

The Cleveland Harbor Light Complex is under the command of the Executive Director who reports to the Divisional Commander of the Northeastern Ohio Division which is located in Cleveland, Ohio. The Program Divisions of the Complex are under the day to day control of the Division Directors who report to the Executive Director.

All parts of the Complex are supported by the Central Services
Departments, which are comprised of Administration, Building
Operations, Food Service, and Transportation.

CART PROGRAM

An expanded version of the original Bowery Corps, this Comprehensive Alcoholic Rehabilitation Treatment program works with the Detox Center and dozens of Greater Cleveland alcoholism programs, serving mainly as a Halfway House.

HIP

An improved version of the original Citadel Hotel, this is a downtown residence for Program Graduates and Staff.

RETIREMENT LODGE

Originally part of the Citadel Hotel this provides a semistructured home for older men.

CORRECTIONS

Added in 1973 these programs operate for both men and women, at the County, State and Federal levels.

DETOX CENTER

Added in 1975 this substance abuse program is funded by a grant from the Ohio Department of Health (ODH) through the Region 12 Council on Alcoholism (RCA). It is certified by the ODH and is a Blue Cross service provider.

EMERGENCY SERVICES

Added in 1982 there are five Family Units, beds for men, and a daily Soup Kitchen.

Har-Li-Com 7/87

HOW THE HARBOR LIGHT MOVEMENT BEGAN

The first Salvation Army unit to be recognized as having a unique approach to working with homeless men was the Bowery Corps. Located in a run down section of New York on the Bowery in the early 1900's, it operated as a Rescue Mission with nightly Soup Lines which followed a Gospel Meeting. Men who expressed an interest in Christianity were given a ticket for a free night's lodging. Building upon this example, the Harbor Light Movement evolved in Detroit in 1939. Here men were housed in the Harbor Light building, helped to find work, and encouraged to remain at Harbor Light while contributing to the cost of the operation.

The next major change took place in Cleveland where it was recognized that the work had advanced so far beyond the original scope of a Harbor Light Center, that a different approach was needed. With the support of Divisional Commander Walter French, Major Dimond developed the concept of a Complex which was approved, and implemented in 1973 by Territorial Commander Tripp.

The Complex concept divides the activities into separate components, of Divisions, each with their own structure and Staff and budgets. All Divisions report to the same Executive Director and all are supported by the same Central Services. A greater degree of cost effectiveness is obtained by spreading these activities over many more units of service.

The centralized administration usually results in a more sophisticated level of management, since the annual evaluation and audit is now multiplied by the number of Divisions with their individual contracts. An economy of scale is usually obtained since the fixed management costs are now spread over multiple budgets.

The separate staffing usually allows for a more effective degree of treatment since the Staff can now concentrate upon their chosen area and work to become specialists rather than have to be generalists. This is helpful with the increasing requirements that Staff be certified and/or licensed in a specific area of work.

While the Harbor Light programs have many of the aspects of an institution, they do not usually do salvage work, as do the Adult Rehabilitation Centers, and thus Harbor Light programs are part of the Divisions.

Today there are about 40 Harbor Light programs around the world, some with hundreds of men and women Clients in some very sophisticated programs, often with large Government contracts.

In Cleveland, the Harbor Light Complex is under the command of the Executive Director who reports to the Divisional Commander of the Northeastern Ohio Division which is located in Cleveland, Ohio.

Har-Li-Com 7/87

HISTORY OF THE CLEVELAND HARBOR LIGHT COMPLEX

Following World War II, Cleveland had thousands of unemployed, homeless alcoholic men on Cleveland's Skid Row. Divisional Commander Brigadier Edward Carey, working with Major Peter J Hofman, Administrator of the Adult Rehabilitation Center, started an alcoholic program for men at E 9th & Eagle, in the 5 story building, built by The Salvation Army in 1906 as an Hotel, Headquarters, and Corps.

In January 1949, the Citadel Corps became the Bowery Corps with a budget of \$ 11,000, the use of the Divisional Auditorium, and ten dormitory beds leased from The Salvation Army Citadel Hotel.

The Staff consisted of Captain & Mrs Arthur Marshall and a parttime Cook, Cal Petrick, who had come in through the program. The 200 room Citadel Hotel was run by Divisional Headquarters which in February 1949 hired Donald Heath, Sr, as Room Clerk upon his graduation from Malone College.

Lt Wm Boone assumed leadership in June 1949, assisted by Lt E V Dimond. In September 1950, Lt Dimond became Office in charge of both the Bowery Corps and the Citadel Hotel, after graduating from the Summer School Of Alcohol Studies at Yale. In 1952 Lt Dorothy J Hamley joined the Harbor Light team as Mrs Dimond.

History HLC page 5 of 7

By 1968, the Salvation Army store, Divisional Headquarters, and the Family Welfare Department had moved. Even so, the building was now too small and men were sleeping on cots in the lobby.

By 1970, Harbor Light was remodeling and moving to the 8 story former YWCA at E 18 & Prospect. Although built in 1908 it had sufficient beds and program space, with room for expansion.

In 1973 the Harbor Light program was working far beyond the original assignment of working with homeless male alcoholics. Major Dimond's proposal to form a Complex was recommended for acceptance by the Divisional Commander Brigader Walter French, and was approved by the Territorial Commander Commissioner Bramwell Tripp.

A co-venture with the Ohio College of Podiatric Medicine led to the bi-weekly operation of the Harbor Light Foot Clinic which is sponsored by Phi Alpha Pi. Rapid development followed with the additions of contract programs with State and Federal agencies in the fields of alcoholism and corrections.

In 1975 the Cleveland Harbor Light Complex became the first Salvation Army Unit in the United States to gain national accreditation in alcoholism from the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Hospitals.

History HLC page 6 of 7

In 1985 Cleveland became one of only 18 cities in the USA to be part of the Robert Wood Johnson Health Care for the Homeless Project. The Harbor Light Clinic is an important part of this \$ 1.4 million dollar 3 year program and is open 3 days per week.

Har-Li-Com 7/87

History HLC page 7 of 7